2005

Vernon Ray Rigby v. Loralie Kemp Rigby : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION

The Court has jurisdiction pursuant to Rule 3(a) Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure.

STATEMENT OF ISSUES

1. Did the trial court abuse its discretion by not specifically and thoroughly examining the statutory factors of alimony found in Utah Code Section 30-3-5 and Jones v. Jones, 700 P.2d 1072 (Utah 1985) regarding Loralie Kemp Rigby's financial needs, her ability to produce income for herself and the ability of Vernon Ray Rigby to provide for her needs. Williamson v. Williamson, 983 P.2d 1003 (Utah App. 1999). In determining whether to award alimony and in setting the amount, a trial court must consider the needs of the recipient spouse; the ability of the obligor spouse to provide support; and the length of the marriage. (Rehn v. Rehn, 1999 UT App 41, 974, P.2d 306).

Standard of Review: Trial judges are given "some discretion" in determining mixed questions of fact and law. State v. Pena, 869 P.2d 932, 936-40 (Utah 1994). Trial courts have considerable discretion in determining alimony ... and will be upheld on appeal unless a clear and prejudicial abuse of discretion is demonstrated. Breinholt v. Breinholt, 905 P.2d 877 (Utah App. 1995) quoting Howell v. Howell, 806 P.2d 1209 (Utah App. 1991). Failure to consider the Jones factors constitutes an abuse of discretion. Paffel v. Paffel, 732 P.2d 96, 101 (Utah 1986) and Rehn v. Rehn, 974 P.2d

306 (Utah App. 1999). Failure of a Trial court to make findings on all material issues is reversible error unless the facts in the record are clear, uncontroverted, and capable of supporting only a finding in favor of judgment. Haumont v. Haumont, 793 P.2d 421, 425 (Utah App. 1990). The findings of fact must show that the Court's judgment or decree follows logically from, and is supported by the evidence. Smith v. Smith, 726 P.2d 423, 426 (Utah 1986).

2. The Trial court abused its discretion by seemingly using income equalization to determine that Mr. Rigby should pay alimony, yet the Court did not take into consideration the debts Mr. Rigby was ordered to pay.

Standard of Review: This Court will set aside findings of fact only if they are clearly erroneous. Duncan v. Howard, 918 P.2d 888, 891 (Utah App. 1996). A party challenging a trial court's findings of fact must "marshal all the evidence supporting the trial court's findings and then ... show the evidence to be legally insufficient to support the findings." Rudman v. Rudman, 812 P.2d 73, 79 (Utah App. 1991). This Court reviews a trial court's conclusions of law for correctness. State v. Pena, 869 P.2d 932, 936 (Utah 1994). Even though the trial court has considerable latitude to adjust financial and property interest, (Naranjo v. Naranjo, 751 P.2d 1144, 1146 (Utah App. 1988)), an appellate court will reverse for abuse of discretion. Hall v. Hall, 858 P.2d 1018, 1021 (Utah App. 1993).

3. The trial court abused its discretion in allowing Vernon Ray Rigby only fifteen percent (15%) of the equity of the marital home based on the Court's findings of contempt.

Standard of Review: Trial judges are given "some discretion" in determining mixed questions of fact and law. State v. Pena, 869 P.2d 932, 936-40 (Utah 1994). Even though the trial court has considerable latitude to adjust financial and property interest, (Naranjo v. Naranjo, 751 P.2d 1144, 1146 (Utah App. 1988)), an appellate court will reverse for abuse of discretion. Hall v. Hall, 858 P.2d 1018, 1021 (Utah App. 1993). A trial court abuses its discretion when it fails to enter specific, detailed findings supporting its financial determinations. Such findings are adequate only if sufficiently detailed and include subsidiary facts to disclose the steps by which the ultimate conclusion on each factual issue was reached. *Id.* To permit appellate review of a property and debt distribution, the distribution must be based upon adequate factual findings and must be in accordance with the standards set by this states's appellate courts. Finlayson v. Finlayson, 874 P.2d 843 (Utah App. 1994). Failure to make findings on all material facts is reversible error unless the facts in the record are clear, uncontroverted and capable of supporting only a finding in favor of the judgment. Haumont v. Haumont, 793 P.2d 421, 425 (Utah App. 1990).

4. Did the Trial Court abuse its discretion by finding Mr. Rigby in contempt of court?

Standard of review. This Court will set aside findings of fact only if they are clearly erroneous. Duncan v. Howard, 918 P.2d 888, 891 (Utah App. 1996). A party challenging a trial court's findings of fact must "marshal all the evidence supporting the trial court's findings and then ... show the evidence to be legally insufficient to support the findings." Rudman v. Rudman, 812 P.2d 73, 79 (Utah App. 1991). This Court reviews a trial court's conclusions of law for correctness. State v. Pena, 869 P.2d 932, 936 (Utah 1994).

DETERMINATIVE STATUTES AND RULES

Utah Code Section 30-3-5(8)(a)(i-vii)

(8) (a) The court shall consider at least the following factors in determining alimony:

- (i) the financial condition and needs of the recipient spouse;
- (ii) the recipient's earning capacity or ability to produce income;
- (iii) the ability of the
- (iv) payor spouse to provide support;
- (v) the length of the marriage.
- (vi) whether the recipient spouse has custody of minor children requiring support;

- (vii) whether the recipient spouse worked in a business owned or operated by the payor spouse; and
 - (viii) whether the recipient spouse directly contributed to any increase in the payor spouse's skill by paying for education received by the payor spouse or allowing the payor spouse to attend school during the marriage.
- (b) The Court may consider the fault of the parties in determining alimony.
- (c) As a general rule, the court should look to the standard of living, existing at the time of separation, in determining alimony in accordance with Subsection (8)(a). However, the court shall consider all relevant facts and equitable principles and may, in its discretion, base alimony on the standard of living that existed at the time of trial. In marriages of short duration, when no children have been conceived or born during the marriage, the court may consider the standard of living that existed at the time of the marriage.
- (d) The court may, under appropriate circumstances, attempt to equalize the parties' respective standards of living.

Utah Code Section 78-2a-3 (2)(h)

(2)(h) appeals from district court involving domestic relations cases, including, but not limited to, divorce, annulment, property division, child custody, support, parent-time, visitation, adoption, and paternity.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Statement of Facts/ Nature of the Case/ Summary of Argument

During the marriage of Vernon and Loralie Rigby, the parties had purchased a marital home. The Court found that due to Mr. Rigby's contempt of Court there should be an 85% -15% split regarding the equity in the marital home, with Mr. Rigby only being entitled to 15%.

The Court did not make sufficient Findings of Fact to allow the Court to surmise that Mr. Rigby was in fact in contempt of Court. The Court did not provide an analysis of how the contempt was decided nor did the Court apply the standard and burden for a sufficient finding of contempt.

The Court also ordered a disproportionate distribution of the retirement monies held by the parties. The Court deemed it necessary to award Mrs. Rigby alimony and did not enter Findings regarding application of the Jones Factors to determine Mrs. Rigby's needs and Mr. Rigby's ability to pay alimony.

Additionally, Mr. Rigby was ordered to reinstate Mrs. Rigby as a beneficiary even though it would be costly to do so making a direct impact on Mr. Rigby's ability

to pay not only the alimony but also pay the disproportionate share of the marital debt assigned to Mr. Rigby.

POINT 1

DID THE TRIAL COURT ABUSE ITS DISCRETION BY NOT SPECIFICALLY AND THOROUGHLY EXAMINING THE STATUTORY FACTORS OF ALIMONY FOUND IN UTAH CODE SECTION 30-3-5 AND JONES V. JONES, 700 P.2D 1072 (UTAH 1985) REGARDING LORALIE KEMP RIGBY'S FINANCIAL NEEDS, HER ABILITY TO PRODUCE INCOME FOR HERSELF AND THE ABILITY OF VERNON RAY RIGBY TO PROVIDE FOR HER NEEDS? WILLIAMSON V. WILLIAMSON, 983 P.2D 1003 (UTAH APP. 1999). IN DETERMINING WHETHER TO AWARD ALIMONY AND IN SETTING THE AMOUNT, A TRIAL COURT MUST CONSIDER THE NEEDS OF THE RECIPIENT SPOUSE; THE ABILITY OF THE OBLIGOR SPOUSE TO PROVIDE SUPPORT; AND THE LENGTH OF THE MARRIAGE. (REHN V. REHN, 1999 UT APP 41, 974, P.2D 306).

Should the statutory factors of alimony as set forth in the Utah Code and Jones be examined by the Court? If these factors were not specifically and thoroughly examined, is the non-examination an abuse of discretion by the trial Court?

The Utah Court of Appeals found in the case of Howell v. Howell, 806 P.2d 1209, 1213 (Utah Court App. 1991) that, “the trial court abused its discretion by failing to enter specific findings on wife’s financial needs and condition, and the

pertinent facts in the record are not 'clear, uncontroverted, and capable of supporting only a finding in favor of judgement.'"

Further, the Utah Supreme Court has stated that, "Failure to consider the Jones factors constitutes an abuse of discretion (Paffel v. Paffel, 732 P.2d 96, 101 (Utah 1986)).

The Court found that with regard to the income of the parties Mr. Rigby received \$1,180.00 gross income from Granite School District and \$766.00 net from his federal pension (Record/Findings page 237).

The Court made absolutely no specific finding as to Mr. Rigby's net monthly income from his employment. Further, the Court made a finding that Mrs. Rigby's gross monthly income was \$1,670.00. The Court made no specific mention or finding regarding Mrs. Rigby's net monthly income.

It is interesting to note that the Memorandum Decision of the Court (Record, page 226) is different than the actual Findings and Decree prepared by Mrs. Rigby's attorney. The new language used the words "needs" and "equalization of income." Of course, Mr. Rigby was still unrepresented at the time and hampered by his pro se status.

Regardless of the discrepancy between the Memorandum Decision and the Findings and Decree, still, there was absolutely no specific finding by the Court of Mr. or Mrs. Rigby's net monthly incomes.

Even though there was no analysis regarding the net monthly incomes of the parties, the Court then found that Mr. Rigby's monthly income was \$300.00 a month more than Mrs. Rigby's.

The Findings and Decree language that there was "demonstrated need" is wholly unsupported. The claim that the Court "attempted to equalize the parties' economic positions" is also unsupported. Even though financial declarations of both parties were submitted into evidence, the Court in its Findings and Decree made absolutely no mention of either financial declaration nor was there a determination made as to whether the Court accepted or relied on the documentation or whether the Court was relying solely on the oral testimony of both parties.

Even though both parties' financial declarations were discussed during trial the Court did not analyze or scrutinize whether the debts and obligations claimed by both parties were accepted or rejected by the Court. Additionally, the monthly expenses

claimed by both parties were not analyzed so it is unknown whether the Court accepted or rejected the claimed monthly expenses stated by both parties.

With there being no findings as to the specific need of Mrs. Rigby or the ability to pay alimony of Mr. Rigby, the Court's finding that Mrs. Rigby "demonstrated need" is incorrect and an abuse of discretion.

The correct analysis would have been for the Court to compute the net monthly incomes of both parties and then conduct the thorough sweeping scrutinizing analysis of the debts of both parties and the monthly expenses of both parties. The Court could have then made a proper determination of either the needs based alimony or the income equalization. Further, the Court in Rasband stated, "Failure by the Court to consider all of the applicable statutory factors for awarding reasonable alimony, constitutes an abuse of the trial Court's discretion (Rasband v. Rasband, 752 P. 2d 1331, (Utah Ct. App. 1988)).

Regardless, Mr. Rigby testified that he did not have the ability to pay alimony. The Court should keep in mind that all during the separation and up to the time of trial which was almost a two year period, the Court was asked to award Mrs. Rigby alimony on a temporary basis, but the Court declined or reserved the issue.

Mrs. Rigby's financial declaration was submitted into evidence. [See Defendant's Exhibit No.1] She claimed net monthly income of \$1,309.80. She also claimed current monthly expenses of \$1,335.00 yet admitted that she did not pay her mother \$200.00 rent as she had stated in her financial declaration. This case tracks very closely to the Bakanowski case. In Bakanowski the, "trial court failed to enter specific findings on the needs and condition of the recipient spouse, making effective review of the alimony award impossible, that omission is an abuse of discretion." The trial court entered findings on both Wife's and Husband's income. However, the trial court made no factual findings indicating that it considered Wife's financial needs in awarding Wife \$2,000 per month in alimony. Instead, it appears that the trial court simply equalized the parties' income, based on the length of marriage and Husband's fault. While consideration of these factors is within the trial court's discretion, entering "adequate factual findings on all material issues" is mandatory. "In attempting to equalize the parties' income rather than going through the traditional needs analysis, the trail court abused its discretion." Bakanowski v. Bakanowski, 2003 UT App 357, ¶ 10, 80 P. 3d 153.

POINT 2

Even though the Finding and Decree indicate that the Court attempted to “equalize incomes” the Court failed to take into account the specific debt load that was placed on Mr. Rigby.

It was an abuse of discretion for the Court to not conduct an analysis of the respective marital debt that each party was ordered to pay and how the marital debt and subsequent personal debt had such an impact of not making it possible for Mr. Rigby to pay any alimony.

POINT 3

The Court found that due to Mr. Rigby’s several contempts of Court the sanction of choice was to augment the distribution of equity in the marital home. The Court entered findings stating that there was approximately \$18,000.00-\$19,000.00 equity in the home (See Record at page 236) after the mortgage was paid, commissions, closing cost, etc. The Court failed to take into account the attorney lien as filed by Mrs. Rigby’s attorney. Exhibit No. 20 was received into evidence by the Court during trial.

There should be no sanction of equity interest due to there being no contempt. Further, the Court ordered Mr. Rigby to cooperate with the signing and closing on the sale of the home or the Clerk of the Court would be authorized to sign for Mr. Rigby (See Record at page 235).

Additionally, Mr. Rigby had submitted and the Court received into evidence his Exhibit No. 20 showing that Mrs. Rigby's attorney had placed an attorney lien on the property. Mr. Rigby argued that he could not comply with the temporary orders of the Court and arrange financing of the home due to the attorney lien.

Even though sanction of the unequal distribution was improper, due to the attorney lien, Mr. Rigby received approximately \$2,000.00 as his fifteen (15%) percent equity, which was even a greater sanction than the Court attempted to impose.

POINT 4

The Court found that Mr. Rigby was in contempt of the Court's various orders for four different violations. To be found in contempt the Court must make specific findings that there was a specific Court Order, the individual was aware of the Order

of the Court and that they had the ability to comply with the Court Order and that they willingly did not comply. In addition, caselaw state that, "the trial court must enter written Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law with respect to each of the substantive elements. Van Hake v. Thomas, 759 P2d 1162 (Utah 1988).

Very specific findings must be made by the Court for there to be a contempt finding and Order issued. The various contempt findings of the Court dealt with information that Mr. Rigby was to turn over to Mrs. Rigby. Mr. Rigby testified that he did turn over documents and information regarding his 401(k) account. He testified that since Mrs. Rigby was keeping all of her retirement funds from her employment that he thought they had an agreement that he would keep his own retirement.

He testified that he gave the very best accounting to Mrs. Rigby that he could recall. Mr. Rigby's testimony was outlined in Exhibit No.18 that was received into evidence. This exhibit is proof that there was not a wilfulness or a refusal by Mr. Rigby to comply with the Court order. He testified that he provided the information and knowledge that he had available to him.

Mrs. Rigby gave absolutely no testimony that she knew that Mr. Rigby was not complying or that he had the information and the ability to comply with the various Orders of the Court.

Finally, the Court made absolutely no finding that there was clear and convincing burden of proof that was met.

Conclusion

Based upon the foregoing, Petitioner requests that the Finding and Decree previously entered by overturned.