2005

Vernon Ray Rigby v. Loralie Kemp Rigby : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT

Jurisdiction is proper pursuant to Rule 3(a) of the Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure.

ISSUES FOR REVIEW

1. Are the Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Decree of Divorce sufficient in analyzing the parties' income, expenses, needs, and equitable concerns, such as the length of the marriage and contemptuous actions by the Petitioner, to make an award of alimony which equalizes the parties' income?

2. Did the trial court abuse it's discretion in holding the Petitioner in contempt, and in dividing the equity in the marital property 15% to petitioner and 85% to the Respondent?

3. Has the Petitioner/Appellant properly marshaled the evidence pursuant to Doelle v. Bradley, 784 P.2d 1176, 1178 (Utah 1989)?

STANDARD OF REVIEW

The Utah Supreme Court has held that, “Trial courts are given primary responsibility for making determinations of fact. Findings of fact are reviewed by an appellate court under the clearly erroneous standard. For a reviewing court to find clear error, it must decide that the factual findings made by the trial court are not adequately supported by the record, resolving all disputes in the evidence in a light most favorable to the trial court's determination.” State of Utah v. Pena, 869 P.2d 932 (1994).

The appellate court's standard of review with regard to issues of law are, “that all applications of law to findings of fact that produce conclusions of law are reviewed under a nondeferential standard, i.e., for correctness.” State v. Ramirez, 817 P.2d 774, 781-82 (Utah 1991).

In reviewing marshaled evidence, the appellate court standard of review requires the appellate court to defer to the trial court's judgment and not to disturb it so long as the court finds that the trial court has exercised its discretion in accordance with the standards set by this state's appellate courts. Rudman v. Rudman, 812 P.2d 73, 79 (Ut. Ct App. 1991).

If the appellate court does not have marshaled evidence, “there is no reason to disturb the trial court's findings.” Ashton v. Ashton, 733 P.2d 147, 150 (Utah 1987).

STATUTORY PROVISIONS

§30-3-5- of the Utah Code Annotated

Disposition of property -- Maintenance and health care of parties and children -- Division of debts -- Court to have continuing jurisdiction -- Custody and parent-time -- Determination of alimony -- Nonmeritorious petition for modification.

(1) When a decree of divorce is rendered, the court may include in it equitable orders relating to the children, property, debts or obligations, and parties. The court shall include the following in every decree of divorce:

(a) an order assigning responsibility for the payment of reasonable and necessary medical and dental expenses of the dependent children;

(b) if coverage is or becomes available at a reasonable cost, an order requiring the purchase and maintenance of appropriate health, hospital, and dental care insurance for the dependent children;

(c) pursuant to Section **15-4-6.5**:

(i) an order specifying which party is responsible for the payment of joint debts, obligations, or liabilities of the parties contracted or incurred during marriage;

(ii) an order requiring the parties to notify respective creditors or obligees, regarding the court's division of debts, obligations, or liabilities and regarding the parties' separate, current addresses; and

(iii) provisions for the enforcement of these orders; and

(d) provisions for income withholding in accordance with Title 62A, Chapter 11, Recovery Services.

(2) The court may include, in an order determining child support, an order assigning financial responsibility for all or a portion of child care expenses incurred on behalf of the dependent children, necessitated by the employment or training of the custodial parent. If the court determines that the circumstances are appropriate and that the dependent children would be adequately cared for, it may include an order allowing the noncustodial parent to provide child care for the dependent children, necessitated by the employment or training of the custodial parent.

(3) The court has continuing jurisdiction to make subsequent changes or new orders for the custody of the children and their support, maintenance, health, and dental care, and for distribution of the property and obligations for debts as is reasonable and necessary.

(4) Child support, custody, visitation, and other matters related to children born to the mother and father after entry of the decree of divorce may be added to the decree by modification.

(5) (a) In determining parent-time rights of parents and visitation rights of grandparents and other members of the immediate family, the court shall consider the best interest of the child.

(b) Upon a specific finding by the court of the need for peace officer enforcement, the court may include in an order establishing a parent-time or visitation schedule a provision, among other things, authorizing any peace officer to enforce a court-ordered parent-time or visitation schedule entered under this chapter.

(6) If a petition for modification of child custody or parent-time provisions of a court order is made and denied, the court shall order the petitioner to pay the reasonable attorneys' fees expended by the prevailing party in that action, if the court determines that the petition was without merit and not asserted or defended against in good faith.

(7) If a petition alleges noncompliance with a parent-time order by a parent, or a visitation order by a grandparent or other member of the immediate family where a visitation or parent-time right has been previously granted by the court, the court may award to the prevailing party costs, including actual attorney fees and court costs incurred by the prevailing party because of the other party's failure to provide or exercise court-ordered visitation or parent-time.

(8) (a) The court shall consider at least the following factors in determining alimony:

(i) the financial condition and needs of the recipient spouse;

(ii) the recipient's earning capacity or ability to produce income;

(iii) the ability of the payor spouse to provide support;

(iv) the length of the marriage;

(v) whether the recipient spouse has custody of minor children requiring support;

(vi) whether the recipient spouse worked in a business owned or operated by the payor spouse; and

(vii) whether the recipient spouse directly contributed to any increase in the payor spouse's skill by paying for education received by the payor spouse or allowing the payor spouse to attend school during the marriage.

(b) The court may consider the fault of the parties in determining alimony.

(c) As a general rule, the court should look to the standard of living, existing at the time of separation, in determining alimony in accordance with Subsection (8)(a). However, the court shall consider all relevant facts and equitable principles and may, in its discretion, base alimony on the standard of living that existed at the time of trial. In marriages of short

duration, when no children have been conceived or born during the marriage, the court may consider the standard of living that existed at the time of the marriage.

(d) The court may, under appropriate circumstances, attempt to equalize the parties' respective standards of living.

(e) When a marriage of long duration dissolves on the threshold of a major change in the income of one of the spouses due to the collective efforts of both, that change shall be considered in dividing the marital property and in determining the amount of alimony. If one spouse's earning capacity has been greatly enhanced through the efforts of both spouses during the marriage, the court may make a compensating adjustment in dividing the marital property and awarding alimony.

(f) In determining alimony when a marriage of short duration dissolves, and no children have been conceived or born during the marriage, the court may consider restoring each party to the condition which existed at the time of the marriage.

(g) (i) The court has continuing jurisdiction to make substantive changes and new orders regarding alimony based on a substantial material change in circumstances not foreseeable at the time of the divorce.

(ii) The court may not modify alimony or issue a new order for alimony to address needs of the recipient that did not exist at the time the decree was entered, unless the court finds extenuating circumstances that justify that action.

(iii) In determining alimony, the income of any subsequent spouse of the payor may not be considered, except as provided in this Subsection (8).

(A) The court may consider the subsequent spouse's financial ability to share living expenses.

(B) The court may consider the income of a subsequent spouse if the court finds that the payor's improper conduct justifies that consideration.

(h) Alimony may not be ordered for a duration longer than the number of years that the marriage existed unless, at any time prior to termination of alimony, the court finds extenuating circumstances that justify the payment of alimony for a longer period of time.

(9) Unless a decree of divorce specifically provides otherwise, any order of the court that a party pay alimony to a former spouse automatically terminates upon the remarriage or death of that former spouse. However, if the remarriage is annulled and found to be void ab initio, payment of alimony shall resume if the party paying alimony is made a party to the

action of annulment and his rights are determined.

(10) Any order of the court that a party pay alimony to a former spouse terminates upon establishment by the party paying alimony that the former spouse is cohabitating with another person.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The Court of Appeals should dismiss this appeal due to the Findings of Fact Conclusions of Law and Decree of Divorce supporting the trial record of analyzing the income, expenses, needs and equitable concerns, including the length of the marriage and Petitioner's contempt of court.

Secondly, the Appellate's lack of marshaling the evidence warrant this matter's summary dismissal pursuant to well-established case law.

PERTINENT STATEMENT OF FACTS

On April 27, 2005, this divorce case went to trial wherein the following matters were adjudicated: jurisdiction; personal property; the marital home; debts and obligations; the parties' income; the parties' expenses; alimony; retirement accounts; life and health insurance benefits; four issues of contempt; and attorney's fees. a proposed Decree of Divorce in this matter was served by Petitioner's counsel via mail to the Respondent's counsel. (See Addendum A-Memorandum Decision).

Although there is not a sub-paragraph denoted specifically toward the actual expenses of the parties, the district court judge calculated the

actual expenses and subtracted them from the parties' respective incomes, and formulated the alimony award as outlined in the sub-section entitled "Alimony". (See Addendum A).

Expenses were thoroughly discussed and was an integral part of formulating the alimony award as outlined in the trial record. Each parties' Financial Declaration was utilized and admitted into evidence. Mr. Rigby's Financial Declaration was discussed and entered on pages 164-169 of the Trial Transcript; and Ms. Rigby's was discussed and entered on pages 176-178 of the Trial Transcript.

Mr. Rigby admitted that what he filed was his Financial Declaration. (Trial Transcript- page 164, par.9).

Mr. Rigby admitted that his net income from his wages and pension amounted to \$1,974.33 per month. (Trial Transcript- page 164 paras. 18-25 and 165, par.4).

Mr. Rigby admitted that his expenses amounted to \$1,172.64 per month. (Trial Transcript- page 166, paras.11-22).

Evidence was taken showing that Mr. Rigby was supposed to pay \$763.00 per month for the mortgage, in which he was two months behind. (Trial Transcript- page 167, par. 23-25, and page 168 paras.1-5).

Ms. Rigby admits her income from wages to be net \$1,309.80 per month. (Trial Transcript- page 177, paras.5-9).

Ms. Rigby admits her expenses to be approximately \$1,335.00 per month. (Trial Transcript- page 177, paras.18-20).

Ms. Rigby admits that her expenses do not include rent which if she would leave her mother's home would amount to \$650.00 per month in further expense. (Trial Transcript- page 177, paras.21-23).

Ms. Rigby admits that the home is financed in her name alone, which prompted the Court to give him 60 days to refinance the home, or to put the home up for sale. (See Addendum B-Affidavit of Loralie Rigby; File Jan. 12, 2004) and (Addendum C-Law and Motion Minutes; Jan. 20, 2004).

Mr. Rigby admitted that he used marital money for his own purposes. (Trial Transcript- pages 170-175).

SUMMARY AND THE ARGUMENTS

I. Are the Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Decree of Divorce sufficient in analyzing the parties' income, expenses, needs, and equitable concerns, such as the length of the marriage and contemptuous actions by the Petitioner, to make an award of alimony which equalizes the parties' income?

The Utah Court of Appeals has held that the purposes of an alimony award include enabling the receiving spouse to maintain, as nearly as possible, the standard of living enjoyed during the marriage, and

preventing the receiving spouse from becoming a public charge. Munns v. Munns, P.2d 116, 121 (Utah Ct.App.1990).

Recognizing that each divorce case is different, with many fairness issues to weigh, the legislature adopted §30-3-5 of the Utah Code Annotated, which grants the trial court wide discretion to the division of property, alimony, division of debts, and the custody and maintenance of children.

The Code states in pertinent part:

1) When a decree of divorce is rendered, the court may include in it equitable orders relating to the children, property, debts or obligations, and parties.

(8)(a) The court shall consider at least the following factors in determining alimony:

- (i) the financial condition and needs of the recipient spouse;
- (ii) the recipient's earning capacity or ability to produce income;
- (iii) the ability of the payor spouse to provide support;
- (iv) the length of the marriage;
- (v) whether the recipient spouse has custody of minor children requiring support;
- (vi) whether the recipient spouse worked in a business owned or operated by the payor spouse; and
- (vii) whether the recipient spouse directly contributed to any increase in the payor spouse's skill by paying for education received by the payor spouse or allowing the payor spouse to attend school during the marriage.

Even though the Appellee, Ms. Rigby, was staying with her mother, she was married to Mr. Rigby for thirty-three years at the time of the divorce trial. The Court heard evidence that Ms. Rigby did not earn enough

money to get her own apartment, while Mr. Rigby continued to live in the marital home. (Trial Transcript page 177, paras. 10-25). Fortunately, Ms. Rigby was able to temporarily live with her mother.

Careful testimony was given regarding the monthly income, earning capacity, and expenses of the parties. It was even hotly contested. In cross examination, Mr. Rigby tried to prove that Ms. Rigby's expenses were not what she expressed on her Financial Declaration because she did not write a check or give cash to her mother in the amount of \$200.00 for rent. Ms. Rigby explained that \$200.00 were her costs in providing services for her mother. (Trial Transcript pages 67-70). The trial court had all of this information to weigh, and even stated in open court, " I understand that, that she is saying she does not pay, has not paid \$200.00 a month rent. And that's - that does differ from what's in the financial disclosure statement." (Trial Transcript page 70, paras. 19-22).

Ms. Rigby clarified her "rental" expenses by stating that she expends gasoline, food, and the value of helping her mother get to her medical appointments due to her lupus; and that her rental amount was a "guesstimate" of the value of her services. (Trial Transcript page 68, paras. 1-25; and page 90, paras. 8-12).

The Utah Court of Appeals stated that in determining alimony, a trial court must consider three factors: (1) the financial condition and needs of the receiving spouse, (2) the ability of the receiving spouse to produce

sufficient income for him- or herself, and (3) the ability of the responding spouse to provide support. Haumont v. Haumont, 793 P.2d 421, 423 (Utah Ct.App.1990).

The Court held "in considering the above-listed factors, the trial court must make adequate factual findings on all material issues unless the facts in the record are "clear, uncontroverted, and capable of supporting only a finding in favor of the judgment." Id. at 434.

1. The trial court carefully considered the financial condition and needs of the receiving spouse. Ms. Rigby had no disposable income after her expenses were subtracted from her income, and certainly could not afford a place to live. Mr. Rigby had approximately \$300.00 more in disposable income after all of his expenses (including a house payment) than did Ms. Rigby, as outlined in the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law (See Addendum D-page 5 paras. 9-19).

Although the court did not outline the math calculations in the Memorandum Decision or the signed Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, the trial court record reflects that the court came to these figures by carefully considering the income and expenses of the parties and their disposable income.

2. The trial court was fully informed of the ability of the receiving spouse to produce sufficient income for herself. Evidence was presented at trial that Ms. Rigby had done the best she could in mitigating her expenses

by temporarily living with her mother.

Further evidence was presented concerning her present employment and her trying to obtain better employment. Mr. Rigby questioned Ms. Rigby as to her sending out resume`s and job applications, and her present employment with Working RX. (Trial Transcript pages 75-79; and pages 97-99). Through Ms. Rigby's testimony, it seemed clear that she did her best to maintain and maximize her employment opportunities.

3. The trial court carefully weighed the ability of the responding spouse to provide support. In the Memorandum Decision and the Findings of Fact and Conclusions, the court calculated that after expenses, Mr. Rigby would have \$300.00 in disposable dollars. Because Ms. Rigby had a need that was greater than one-half of the \$300.00 in disposable income, the court properly did it's best to equalize the parties' financial situations by dividing the extra money almost in half, and awarding Ms. Rigby \$125.00 in alimony. The record of the trial transcript and the Financial Declarations clearly bear this out.

It is important to remember that the Court of Appeals has further stated that so long as these three factors are considered, we will disturb a trial court's decision concerning alimony only upon a showing "that such a serious inequity has resulted as to manifest a clear abuse of discretion." Haumont, at 424.

Even if the trial court did not show the calculations in it's Memorandum Decision, or in the Findings of Fact; clearly the record before the court bears out that there was not a clear abuse of discretion.

It is also clear that the trial court considered the equitable factors of this being a 33 year marriage, and Mr. Rigby being held in contempt on numerous charges relating to not providing pertinent economic information, when the court exercised it's discretion with respect to the alimony award.

II. Did the trial court abuse it's discretion in holding the Petitioner in contempt, and in dividing the equity in the marital property 15% to Petitioner and 85% to the Respondent.

Last month, the Utah Court of Appeals stated, "Under Utah law, "in order to prove **contempt** for failure to comply with a court order it must be shown that the person cited for **contempt** knew what was required, had the ability to comply, and intentionally failed or refused to do so.'" In re Cannetella, 2006 P.3d 89, (UT Ct. App. March, 2006). In each of the following contempt issues, Mr. Rigby clearly knew what was required, had the ability to comply, and intentionally failed to do so.

As stated in the Findings of fact and Conclusions of Law, of the six contempt issues certified for trial, the court heard testimony on four of them. They were:

a. Whether or not Mr. Rigby should be held in contempt for his failure to provide a detailed written accounting concerning his 401(k) at Discover,

what monies he took out of his account, when he took the monies, and what he used them for.

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